prison, (2) three years of supervised released, (3) a \$30,000 criminal fine, and (4) a \$100 court assessment.

Pursuant to Section 1760(e) of the Export Control Reform Act ("ECRA"), the export privileges of any person who has been convicted of certain offenses. including, but not limited to, Section 38 of the AECA, may be denied for a period of up to ten (10) years from the date of his/her conviction. See 50 U.S.C. 4819(e). In addition, any Bureau of Industry and Security ("BIS") licenses or other authorizations issued under ECRA, in which the person had an interest at the time of the conviction. may be revoked. Id.

BIS received notice of Hejazi's conviction for violating Section 38 of the AECA. BIS provided notice and opportunity for Hejazi to make a written submission to BIS, as provided in Section 766.25 of the Export Administration Regulations ("EAR" or the "Regulations"). 15 CFR 766.25.1 While Hejazi contacted BIS indicating that he may submit a response, to date, BIS has not received a written submission from Hejazi.

Based upon my review of the record and consultations with BIS's Office of Exporter Services, including its Director, and the facts available to BIS, I have decided to deny Hejazi's export privileges under the Regulations for a period of five years from the date of Heiazi's conviction. The Office of Exporter Services has also decided to revoke any BIS-issued licenses in which Hejazi had an interest at the time of his conviction.2

Accordingly, it is hereby ordered: First, from the date of this Order until March 3, 2025, Khaldoun Hejazi, with a last known address of 1112 West Howe Street, Boise, ID 83706, and when acting for or on his behalf, his successors. assigns, employees, agents or representatives ("the Denied Person"), may not directly or indirectly participate in any way in any transaction involving any commodity, software or technology (hereinafter collectively referred to as "item") exported or to be exported from the United States that is subject to the Regulations, including, but not limited

A. Applying for, obtaining, or using any license, license exception, or export control document;

B. Carrying on negotiations concerning, or ordering, buying, receiving, using, selling, delivering, storing, disposing of, forwarding, transporting, financing, or otherwise servicing in any way, any transaction involving any item exported or to be exported from the United States that is subject to the Regulations, or engaging in any other activity subject to the Regulations; or

Č. Benefitting in any way from any transaction involving any item exported or to be exported from the United States that is subject to the Regulations, or from any other activity subject to the

Regulations.

Second, no person may, directly or indirectly, do any of the following:

A. Export, reexport, or transfer (incountry) to or on behalf of the Denied Person any item subject to the Regulations:

B. Take any action that facilitates the acquisition or attempted acquisition by the Denied Person of the ownership, possession, or control of any item subject to the Regulations that has been or will be exported from the United States, including financing or other support activities related to a transaction whereby the Denied Person acquires or attempts to acquire such ownership, possession or control:

C. Take any action to acquire from or to facilitate the acquisition or attempted acquisition from the Denied Person of any item subject to the Regulations that has been exported from the United

D. Obtain from the Denied Person in the United States any item subject to the Regulations with knowledge or reason to know that the item will be, or is intended to be, exported from the United States; or

E. Engage in any transaction to service any item subject to the Regulations that has been or will be exported from the United States and which is owned. possessed or controlled by the Denied Person, or service any item, of whatever origin, that is owned, possessed or controlled by the Denied Person if such service involves the use of any item subject to the Regulations that has been or will be exported from the United States. For purposes of this paragraph, servicing means installation, maintenance, repair, modification or

Third, pursuant to section 1760(e) of ECRA (50 U.S.C. 4819(e)) and sections 766.23 and 766.25 of the Regulations, any other person, firm, corporation, or business organization related to Hejazi by ownership, control, position of responsibility, affiliation, or other connection in the conduct of trade or

business may also be made subject to the provisions of this Order in order to prevent evasion of this Order.

Fourth, in accordance with part 756 of the Regulations, Hejazi may file an appeal of this Order with the Under Secretary of Commerce for Industry and Security. The appeal must be filed within 45 days from the date of this Order and must comply with the provisions of part 756 of the Regulations.

Fifth, a copy of this Order shall be delivered to Hejazi and shall be published in the Federal Register.

Sixth, this Order is effective immediately and shall remain in effect until March 3, 2025.

John Sonderman,

Director, Office of Export Enforcement. [FR Doc. 2022-01427 Filed 1-24-22; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 3510-DT-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

International Trade Administration [A-122-857]

Certain Softwood Lumber Products From Canada: Final Results of **Antidumping Duty Administrative** Review; 2019; Correction

AGENCY: Enforcement and Compliance, International Trade Administration, Department of Commerce.

ACTION: Notice; correction.

SUMMARY: The Department of Commerce (Commerce) published notice in the Federal Register on December 2, 2021 in which Commerce announced the final results of the 2019 administrative reviews of the antidumping duty (AD) order on softwood lumber from Canada. This notice incorrectly excluded the name Fraserview Remanufacturing Inc., d.b.a. Fraserview Cedar Products.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Jeff Pedersen, AD/CVD Operations, Office IV, Enforcement and Compliance, International Trade Administration, U.S. Department of Commerce, 1401 Constitution Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20230; telephone: (202) 482-2769.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Correction

In the **Federal Register** of December 2, 2021, in FR Doc 2021-26149, on page 68473, in the third column, we will correct the name of the Exporter/ Producer "5. 752615 B.C Ltd" by adding the name Fraserview Remanufacturing Inc., d.b.a. Fraserview Cedar Products to this name, such that it reads "5. 752615 B.C Ltd; Fraserview Remanufacturing Inc., d.b.a. Fraserview Cedar Products."

¹ The Regulations are currently codified in the Code of Federal Regulations at 15 CFR parts 730-774 (2021).

² The Director, Office of Export Enforcement, is now the authorizing official for issuance of denial orders, pursuant to recent amendments to the Regulations (85 FR 73411, November 18, 2020).

Background

On December 2, 2021, Commerce published in the **Federal Register** the final results of the 2019 administrative reviews of the AD order on softwood lumber from Canada.¹ We failed to include the name Fraserview Remanufacturing Inc., d.b.a. Fraserview Cedar Products in the list of exporters and producers under review.

Notification to Interested Parties

This notice is issued and published in accordance with sections 751(a)(1) and 777(i)(1) of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended and 19 CFR 351.213(h).

Dated: January 19, 2022.

Ryan Majerus,

Deputy Assistant Secretary for Policy and Negotiations.

[FR Doc. 2022-01362 Filed 1-24-22; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 3510-DS-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

International Trade Administration

[A-489-824]

Heavy Walled Rectangular Welded Carbon Steel Pipes and Tubes From the Republic of Turkey: Final Results of Changed Circumstances Review

AGENCY: Enforcement and Compliance, International Trade Administration, Department of Commerce.

SUMMARY: On December 10, 2021, the Department of Commerce (Commerce) published its notice of initiation and preliminary results of changed circumstances review (CCR) of the antidumping duty (AD) order on heavy walled rectangular welded carbon steel pipes and tubes (HWR pipes and tubes) from the Republic of Turkey (Turkey). Commerce preliminarily determined that Ozdemir Boru Profil Sanavi ve Ticaret Sirketi (A.S.) (Ozdemir AS) is the successor-in-interest to Ozdemir Boru Profil Sanayi ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi (Ozdemir Ltd. Sti.), and, as a result, should be accorded the same treatment previously accorded to that company. We invited interested parties to comment on the preliminary results. As no parties submitted comments, and there is no other information or evidence on the record calling into question our preliminary results, Commerce is making no changes to the preliminary results. For these final results, Commerce continues to find that Ozdemir AS is the successor-in-interest to Ozdemir Ltd. Sti.

DATES: Applicable January 25, 2022. FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Samantha Kinney at (202) 482–2285, Office VIII, Enforcement and Compliance, International Trade Administration, U.S. Department of Commerce, 1401 Constitution Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20230.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Background

On September 13, 2016, Commerce published the AD order on imports of HWR pipes and tubes from Turkey. On November 2, 2021, Ozdemir AS requested that Commerce conduct an expedited CCR of the Order to determine that Ozdemir AS is the successor-in-interest to Ozdemir Ltd. Sti.² In its request, Ozdemir AS addressed the factors Commerce analyzes with respect to successor-ininterest determinations, and provided documentation in support.3 Commerce received no comments from interested parties on Ozdemir AS's CCR request. On December 10, 2021, Commerce initiated a CCR and made preliminary findings that Ozdemir AS is the successor-in-interest to Ozdemir Ltd. Sti., and is entitled to Ozdemir Ltd. Sti.'s AD cash deposit rate with respect to entries of subject merchandise.4 We provided interested parties 14 days from the date of publication of the Preliminary Results to submit case briefs and to request a public hearing. No interested parties submitted case briefs or requested a hearing.

Scope of the Order

The merchandise covered by the *Order* is certain heavy walled rectangular welded steel pipes and tubes of rectangular (including square) cross section, having a nominal wall thickness of not less than 4 mm. The

merchandise includes, but is not limited to, the American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) A–500, grade B specifications, or comparable domestic or foreign specifications.

Included products are those in which: (1) Iron predominates, by weight, over each of the other contained elements; (2) the carbon content is 2 percent or less, by weight; and (3) none of the elements below exceeds the quantity, by weight, respectively indicated:

- 2.50 percent of manganese, or
- 3.30 percent of silicon, or
- 1.50 percent of copper, or
- 1.50 percent of aluminum, or
- 1.25 percent of chromium, or
- 0.30 percent of cobalt, or
- 0.40 percent of lead, or
- 2.0 percent of nickel, or
- 0.30 percent of tungsten, or
- 0.80 percent of molybdenum, or
- 0.10 percent of niobium (also called columbium), or
 - 0.30 percent of vanadium, or
 - 0.30 percent of zirconium.

The subject merchandise is currently provided for in item 7306.61.1000 of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States (HTSUS). Subject merchandise may also enter under HTSUS 7306.61.3000. While the HTSUS subheadings and ASTM specification are provided for convenience and customs purposes, the written description of the scope of this *Order* is dispositive.

Final Results of Changed Circumstances Review

Because the record contains no information or evidence that calls into question the *Preliminary Results*, and because we received no comments from interested parties to the contrary, for the reasons stated in the *Preliminary Results*, Commerce continues to find that Ozdemir AS is the successor-ininterest to Ozdemir Ltd. Sti.

Instructions to U.S. Customs and Border Protection

Based on these final results, we will instruct U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) not to collect estimated AD duties for shipments of subject merchandise that is both produced and exported by Ozdemir AS because this merchandise is excluded from the Order. For shipments of subject merchandise that is not both produced and exported by Ozdemir AS and is entered, or withdrawn from warehouse, for consumption on or after the publication date of this notice in the Federal Register, we will instruct CBP to collect estimated AD duties at the current AD cash deposit rate for merchandise not both produced and

¹ See Certain Softwood Lumber Products from Canada: Final Results of Antidumping Duty Administrative Review; 2019, 86 FR 68471 (December 2, 2021).

¹ See Heavy Walled Rectangular Welded Carbon Steel Pipes and Tubes from the Republic of Korea, Mexico, and the Republic of Turkey: Antidumping Duty Orders, 81 FR 62865 (September 13, 2016) (Order).

 $^{^2\,}See$ Ozdemir AS's Letter, "Request for Changed Circumstances Reviews," dated November 2, 2021 (Ozdemir AS's CCR Request).

³ *Id*.

⁴ See Heavy Walled Rectangular Welded Carbon Steel Pipes and Tubes from Turkey: Notice of Initiation and Preliminary Results of Changed Circumstances Review, 86 FR 70443 (December 10, 2021) (Preliminary Results). As stated in the Preliminary Results, entries of subject merchandise that are not both produced and exported by Ozdemir Ltd. Sti. have an applicable AD cash deposit rate. Entries that are both produced and exported by Ozdemir Ltd. Sti. are excluded from the Order. In the Preliminary Results, we determined that Ozdemir AS is the successor-in-interest to Ozdemir Ltd. Sti.